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) 

LOS ALAMOS NATIONAL LADORA TORY ) 
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND STIPULATED FINAL ORDER 

This Settlement Agreement and Stipulated Final Order ( .. Settlement Agreement") is 

entered into between the Hazardous Waste Bureau ("HWB") of the Resource Protection Division 

("Division") of the New Mexico Environment Department ("NMED"), and the United States 

Department of Energy ("DOE") and Los Alamos National Security, LLC ("LANS") 

(collectively, the "Respondents") for the purpose of resolving Compliance Order No. HWB-14-

20, issued to the Respondents on December 6, 2014 ("LANL Order"), related to the Los Alamos 

National Laboratory ("LANL"). Pursuant to 20.1.5.600(B)(2) NMAC, NMED and the 

Respondents (collectively "Parties") enter into this Settlement Agreement to resolve alleged 

violations of the New Mexico Hazardous Waste Act ("HWA"), NMSA 1978, Sections 74-4-1 to 

-14, the Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, 20.4.1 NMAC, ("HWMR"), and Facility 

Pennit EPA J.D. NUMBER NM0890010515-TSDF ("LANL Pennit"), as identified in the LANL 

Order. 
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I. BACKGROUND 

A. PARTIES 

l. Pursuant to the Department of Environment Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 9-7 A-1 to -15, 

NMED is an agency of the executive branch of the State of New Mexico ("State"). NMED, 

through the HWB, is charged with administration and enforcement of the HWA, the HWMR and 

correlated Permits, including assessing civil penalties for violations thereof. 

2. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has granted NMED authority to implement 

the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA"), 42 U.S.C. § 6901 to 6992k, within 

New Mexico. The HWMR incorporate portions of 40 C.F.R. § 260 to 40 C.P.R. § 270, 40 

C.F.R. § 273,40 C.F.R. § 279 and related federal regulations by reference. 

3. The Respondents are each defined as a "person" within the meaning of Section 74-4-

3(M) ofthe HWA. 

4. The Respondents are engaged in the management, storage and treatment of hazardous 

waste at LANL, including transuranic ("TRU") mixed waste. Hazardous waste management and 

the hazardous waste component ofTRU mixed waste are subject to RCRA. 

5. DOE is a federal agency; LANS is a limited liability company conducting business in 

New Mexico. 

6. DOE is the owner of LANL, and the Respondents are collectively the co-operators of 

LANL, which requires a permit under 20.4.1.900 NMAC (incorporating 40 C.F.R § 270.1 (a)). 

· LANS is co-operator of LANL pursuant to a contract with DOE that became effective on June 1, 

2006. 
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7. LANL is a permitted hazardous waste treatment and storage facility, operating under the 

LANL Permit first issued by NMED on November 8, 1989, and renewed on November 30, 2010. 

DOE and LANS are Co-Permittees under the LANL Permit. 

B. HISTORY 

8. On February 14, 2014, at approximately 11:14 PM, there was an incident in the 

underground repository at the DOE-owned Waste Isolation Pilot Plant ("WIPP"), which resulted 

in the release of americium and plutonium from a TRU mixed waste container (drum number 

68660) into the environment. It was eventually determined that drum 68660 originated at 

LANL. 

9. After the February 14, 2014 incident, NMED opened an investigation into potential 

violations of the LANL Permit, the HWA and the HWMR, which included a review and analysis 

of federal investigatory reports, RCRA information requests and self-disclosures by the 

Respondents. 

I 0. Based upon the results of its investigation, NMED issued the LANL Order to the 

Respondents on December 6, 2014 for alleged violations of the LANL Permit, the HWA and the 

HWMR. 

11. After a request for a one week extension of the filing deadline, DOE and LANS filed 

separate Answers and Requests for Hearing on January 9, 2015. 

I 2. The Parties met in an attempt to reach a mutual settlement ofNMED's claims relating to 

the violations alleged in the LANL Order. 

13. The Parties executed a docwnent entitled General Principles of Agreement HWB-14-20 

and HWB-14-21 on April 30, 2015 ("POA"). 
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C. ALLEGED VIOLATIONS 

14. NMED alleged the following violations in the LANL Order. 

15. The Respondents failed to obtain a permit to treat hazardous wastes in violation of 

20.4.1.900 NMAC, incorporating 40 C.F.R. § 270.l(c), when Respondents neutralized liquid 

from 232 containers that had multiple EPA Hazardous Waste Numbers. 

16. The Respondents failed to obtain a permit to treat hazardous wastes, in violation of 

20.4.1.900 NMAC, incorporating 40 C.F.R. § 270.l(c), when Respondents failed to add 

absorbent to hazardous waste at the time the waste was first placed into 672 containers. 

17. The Respondents treated hazardous waste in a storage unit not authorized by the Permit 

for treatment, in violation of20.4.1.900 NMAC, incorporating 40 C.F.R. § 270.1(c). 

18. The Respondents failed to confine waste treatment to only those units which DOE and 

LANS had proposed as treatment units in their Permit Application, in violation of Permit 

Condition 2.2. 

19. The Respondents failed to submit a permit modification request to treat waste at T A-50-

69, in violation of20.4. 1.900 NMAC, incorporating 40 C.F.R. § 270.42. 

20. The Respondents failed to notify NMED in writing within thirty (30) days of discovery of 

the deviation from the information contained in the Permit Application which caused 

Respondents to be out of compliance with the Permit, in violation of Permit Condition 1.5. 

21. The Respondents failed to notify NMED that they did not submit relevant facts in their 

Permit Application or had submitted incorrect information in their Permit Application, in 

violation of Permit Condition 1.9.15. 

22. The Respondents failed to provide NMED advanced written notice that they were going 

to treat hazardous waste at TA-50-69, in violation of Permit Condition 1.9.11. 
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23. The Respondents failed to provide NMED an opportunity to inspect a modified unit to 

ensure DOE and LANS complied with the Penn it, in violation of Penn it Condition I. 9.21. 

24. The Respondents accepted waste streams for storage and treatment at permitted units at 

the Facility that were not fully characterized in violation ofPennit Condition 2.4.1. 

25. The Respondents failed to ensure that initial characterization of waste streams LA­

MIN02-V.OOJ, LA-CINOJ.001, LA-MIN04-S.001, and LA-Ml-1001.001 was reviewed or 

repeated to verify that the characterization was accurate and updated, in violation of Permit 

Condition 2.4.7. 

26. The Respondents failed to annually reevaluate waste streams LA-MIN02-V.OOI, LA­

CINOI.OOl, LA-MJN04-S.001, and LA-MHDOl.OOI to verify the accuracy of initial and 

subsequent characterization results, in violation of Penn it Condition 2.4. 7(1 ). 

27. The Respondents failed to reevaluate waste streams LA-MIN02-V.001, LA-CJN01.001, 

LA-MIN04-S.OOJ, and LA-MHDOl.OOI to assess the accuracy of the initial waste 

characterization regarding EPA HWN assignments, in violation of Permit Condition 2.4.7(2). 

28. The Respondents failed to perform reevaluation of initial characterization infonnation 

and annual verification of waste streams LA-MIN02-V.001, LA-CINOl.OOl, LA·MIN04-S.001, 

and LA-MHDO 1.00 I, in violation of Penn it Attachment C, Condition C.3. 

29. The Respondents mixed incompatible wastes (nitrate salts) and organic materials (organic 

absorbents and organic neutralizers) in the same container, in violation of Pennit Condition 2.8 

and 20.4. l .500 NMAC, both incorporating 40 C.F.R. § 264.177(a). 

30. The Respondents failed to exercise reasonable and necessary precautions during 

unauthorized treatment and storage of ignitable or reactive waste, mixing of incompatible waste, 

or mixing of incompatible wastes and other materials to prevent reactions which could generate 
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or result in extreme heat, gas pressure, fire, explosions, or dangerous chemical reactions which 

Respondents knew or should have known could harm human health or the environment, in 

violation of Permit Conditions 2.8(1) and (5), incorporating 40 C.F.R § 264.17(b). 

31. The Respondents failed to provide an oral report within 24 hours after the time they knew 

or should have known of the noncompliance which endangered human health or the 

environment, in violation of Permit Condition 1.9.12.1. 

32. The Respondents failed to provide a written report within five (5) days after they knew or 

should have known of the noncompliance that endangered human health or the environment, in 

violation of Permit Condition 1.9.12.2. 

II. ~OMPROMISE AND SETTLEMENT 

33. The Parties enter into this Settlement Agreement to settle and completely resolve the 

alleged violations contained in the LANL Order, and any future claims, penalties, fines, 

liabilities or other sanctions against the Respondents and their officers, directors, employees, 

agents, constituent agencies, contractors, subsidiaries, successors, assigns, trustees, receivers, 

and other affiliates arising from or related to the February 14 incident at WIPP, the LANL Order, 

the Extent of Condition review performed by the Respondents at LANL, and the self-disclosures 

made by the Respondents since February 14, 2014, and in order to avoid further litigation and 

expense. This Settlement Agreement shall not be construed as an admission by Respondents to 

the alleged violations. The Parties admit jurisdiction and consent to the relief specified herein. 

The Parties agree that this Settlement Agreement is and shall be construed as consistent with the 

POA. 

34. In compromise and settlement of the alleged violations contained in the LANL Order 

against the Respondents and their officers, directors, employees, agents, constituent agencies, 
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contractors, subsidiaries, successors, assigns, trustees, receivers and other affiliates, and any 

future NMED claims, penalties, fines, liabilities, or other sanctions arising from or related 

thereto as identified in paragraph 33, the Respondents shall implement the following Corrective 

Actions and Supplemental Environmental Projects ("SEP(s)''), as well as perform all Other 

Commitments as specified in paragraphs 42 and 43. 

A. COMPLIANCE SCHEDULE FOR CORRECTIVE ACTIONS 

35. The LANL corrective actions and corrective action schedules are included as Auachmenl 

A. The Respondents shall keep NMED apprised of progress made on corrective actions found in 

Anachment A on a monthly basis. The Respondents shall complete all the corrective actions 

contained in Allachment A and submit the required Evidence of Completion to NMED for 

approval as specified in Attachment A, unless an alternate date is approved by NMED in 

accordance with paragraph 58. 

B. SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS 

36. The following SEPs include deadlines for implementation and final execution. Upon 

completion of each SEP, Respondents shall submit a signed and sworn Certification of 

Completion, executed by their authorized representatives, including the pertinent attachments 

and data related to the final implementation of each SEP, to NMED for approval within thirty 

(30) calendar days after the completion of each SEP. Following completion of a SEP and 

submittal of a Certification of Completion, NMED will review and provide Respondents with 

written approval certifying satisfactory completion of each SEP, or alternatively, written 

correspondence identifying the specific reason(s) why the SEP or Certification of Completion is 

deficient. The Respondents shall have an opportunity to correct any deficiencies and/or 

supplement the Certification of Completion before resubmitting to NMED for approval. 
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37. DOE shall expend up to $12 million to improve DOE-owned transportation routes at 

LANL used for the transportation of transuranic waste to WIPP. Potential projects eligible for 

funding include widening portions of East Jemez Road and constructing egress/merge lanes at 

the intersection of East Jemez Road and New Mexico Route 4. 

a) Within forty five (45) calendar days of the effective date of this Settlement 

Agreement, DOE wiH assign designees to participate in meetings with the New Mexico 

Department of Transportation ("NMDOT') and NMED to determine the best use of these 

funds for improvements to DOE-owned transportation routes at LANL. AU agreed to 

dates, deadlines and improvement projects will be memorialized in a written document 

between DOE, NMDOT and NMED, which shall be fully enforceable in accordance with 

paragraph 45, and will be attached hereto as Addendum 1. 

b) DOE, NMDOT and NMED shall consider input from Los Alamos County. 

38. DOE will fund independent, external triennial reviews of environmental regulatory 

compliance and operations at LANL to ensure that any regulatory deficiencies are identified. 

Each member of the triennial review team shall meet all applicable LANL facility security, 

access, environmental, 'safety, and health protocols and training requirements associated with 

access to LANL and LANL records. The results of the triennial reviews shall be made available 

to the Respondents, NMED and the public. The Respondents, their constituent agencies, 

contractors and affiliates agree to address any potential regulatory violations. or operational 

deficiencies, that could lead to potential environmental regulatory violations, identified in the 

triennial reviews. NMED agrees to refrain from taking any enforcement action against the 

Responden1s, their constituent agencies, contractors and affiliates for any potential regulatory 

violations, or operational deficiencies, that could lead to potential environmental regulatory 
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violations, identified in the triennial reviews so long as the Respondents and their facility 

operators correct any deficiencies identified in the course of such reviews within sixty (60) 

calendar days of the finalization of each triennial review report, or for good cause shown, within 

another period of time beyond sixty (60) calendar days, if approved by NMED. DOE and 

NMED shall agree on a mechanism to procure and select a third party to perfonn the 

independent triennial reviews. 

a) DOE shall submit to NMED a proposed LANL Triennial Review Scope of Work 

and Guidelines, within one (1) calendar year of the effective date of this Settlement 

Agreement for comment and final approval by NMED. Should DOE amend any 

provision contained in an approved LANL Triennial Review Scope of Work and 

Guidelines prior to any subsequent triennial review, DOE shall resubmit the amended 

LANL Triennial Review Scope of Work and Guidelines to NMED for approval. 

b) The initial triennial review for LANL shall be completed and made public before 

the end of federal fiscal year 2018. 

39. DOE shall expend $7.5 million to design and install engineering structures in canyons in 

and around LANL to slow storm water flow and decrease sediment load to improve water 

quality in the area, allowing surface water management at a watershed scale. 

a) Within sixty (60) calendar days of the effective date of this Settlement 

Agreement, the Respondents shall assign designees to participate in technical meetings 

with designees from NMED's Surface Water Quality Bureau, NMED's Department of 

Energy Oversight Bureau and the HWB. The designees shaH consider input from Los 

Alamos County. 
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b) After the designees have met and discussed the preferred engineering structures 

and locations, the Respondents will submit a proposed Storm Water Engineering 

Structure Work Plan to NMED for approval. The approved work plan will be posted to 

the LANL Electronic Public Reading Room ("EPRR"), shaH be fully enforceable m 

accordance with paragraph 45. and will be attached hereto as Addendum 2. 

40. DOE shall expend $2.5 million to fund increased sampling and monitoring capabilities 

for storm water runoff in and around LANL, with the results of sampling and monitoring to be 

shared with the public and NMED. 

a) Within sixty (60) calendar days of the effective date of this Settlement 

Agreement, the Respondents shall assign designees to participate in technical meetings 

with designees from NMED's Surface Water Quality Bureau, NMED's Department of 

Energy Oversight Bureau and the HWB. The designees shall consider input from Los 

Alamos County. 

b) After the designees have met and discussed the preferred increased sampling and 

monitoring plan options, the Respondents shall submit a proposed Supplemental 

Sampling and Monitoring Work Plan to NMED for approval. The approved work plan 

will be posted to the LANL EPRR, shall be fully enforceable in accordance with 

paragraph 45, and will be attached hereto as Addendum 3. 

41. DOE shall expend $10 million to replace aging potable water lines and install metering 

equipment for LANL potable water systems. These improvements will reduce potable water 

losses, minimize reportable spills and enhance water conservation efforts at LANL. 
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a) Within sixty (60) calendar days of the effective date of this Settlement 

Agreement, DOE will assign designees to participate in technical meetings with NMED's 

Construction Programs Bureau, NMED's Drinking Water Bureau and the HWB. 

b) After the designees have met and discussed a plan for upgrading the aging potable 

water lines and installation of metering equipment, DOE shall submit a proposed Waler 

Line improvement and Metering Upgrade Work Plan to NMED for approval. The 

approved work plan will be posted to the LANL EPRR, shall be fully enforceable in 

accordance with paragraph 45, and wiH be attached hereto as Addendum 4. 

C. OTHER COMMITMENTS 

42. DOE agrees to enter into good-faith, informal discussions with NMED and NMDOT 

concerning the State's ongoing and future needs to maintain roads on WIPP designated routes 

and how best to address those needs in light of the 2012 expiration of the authorization 

contained in Section 16(a) of the Waste Isolation Pilot Plant Land Withdrawal Act, Pub. L. l 04-

201. 

43. The Parties agree to enter into good-faith discussions concerning modifications to the 

2005 Consent Order for completion of the cleanup of legacy contamination at LANL, and 

NMED agrees to consider foregoing penalties accrued under the 2005 Consent Order upon 

successful completion of those discussions. 

III. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

A. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS AND DEFENSES 

44. This Settlement Agreement shall not be construed to prohibit or limit in any way NMED 

from seeking any relief authorized by the HW A, HWMR or the LANL Permit for violation of 

any state or federal requirement applicable to Respondents not addressed in this Settlement 
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Agreement. NMED reserves all of the powers, authorities, rights and remedies, whether 

administrative or judicial, civil or criminal, legal or equitable, to enforce the requirements of the 

HW A, HWMR or the LANL Permit, for any past, present or future violation not addressed in 

this Settlement Agreement or in the LANL Order. This Settlement Agreement shall not be 

construed to prohibit or limit in any way Respondents from raising any defense to any such 

NMED action. 

45. Subject to paragraphs 46 and 57, NMED retains its right to enforce this Settlement 

Agreement, Allachmcnt A, addenda and any documents submitted by the Respondents relating 

thereto, by administrative or judicial action, including the issuance of additional civil penalties 

under NMSA 1978, § 74-4-JO(C) (2001), for any failure to meet any deadline or perform any 

requirement contained in this Settlement Agreement (except those contained in paragraph 38), 

Auachment A, addenda and any document submitted by Respondents relating thereto, and 

therefore agrees not to reinstate or revive the LANL Order or any other violations contemplated 

in paragraph 33. The Respondents retain the right to challenge an enforcement action by NMED 

under this paragraph solely on the question of whether any such failure giving rise to the 

enforcement action occurred. NMED shall be entitled to recover its costs, including attorney 

fees, in any action brought to enforce this Settlement Agreement, Attachment A, addenda, and 

any document submitted by Respondents relating thereto, in which NMED is a prevailing party. 

Prior to initiating any enforcement action under this paragraph, NMED shall notify Respondents 

in writing of its intention and allow the Respondents ten (1 0) calendar days to submit new 

information solely on the question of whether the failure occurred. 

46. Nothing in this Settlement Agreement, including paragraphs 36 through 41 above, is 

intended to require DOE to obligate or expend funds in excess of available appropriations, 
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apportionments, or allotments in violation of the Anti-Deficiency Act, 31 U.S.C. 

§§ 1341 (a)(l )(A) and 15 I 7(a). DOE will exhaust all of its legal authorities to take all necessary 

steps, including but not limited to budget reprogramming within its existing authority to 

effectuate the provisions of paragraphs 36 through 41. Funds used by DOE to execute this 

Settlement Agreement will not detract from the operational or environmental cleanup budget at 

LANL or from the WIPP recovery budget. 

47. To the extent DOE has not evaluated in accordance with the National Environmental 

Policy Act {"NEPA") the actions required by this Settlement Agreement, DOE will prepare an 

appropriate NEPA document analyzing the potential environmental impacts associated with 

these actions prior to commencing work on the action(s). 

48. Nothing in this Settlement Agreement will obligate the Respondents to disclose 

information when such disclosure is contrary to law, including classified information. 

49. ln the event that NMED disapproves any timely submission required by this Settlement 

Agreement, Altachmem A, addenda or any documents relating thereto, NMED shall identify the 

specific reason(s) for the disapproval, and the Respondents shall have the opportunity to correct 

any detlciencies and supplement the submission. 

B. MUTUAL RELEASE 

50. The Parties mutually release each other from all claims that the Parties raised or could 

have raised against the other regarding the facts and violations alleged in the LANL Order, and 

regarding the matters covered in paragraph 33 of this Settlement Agreement. This release 

extends to NMED, the Respondents and their respective officers, directors, employees, agents, 

constituent agencies, contractors, subsidiaries, successors, assigns, trustees, receivers and other 

atli Hates. 
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C. WAIVER OF STATE LIABILITY 

51. Respondents shall assume all costs and liabilities incurred in performing their obligations 

under this Settlement Agreement. NMED, on its own behalf and on behalf of the State of New 

Mexico, does not assume any liability for Respondents' performance of their obligations under 

this Settlement Agreement. 

D. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION DATES 

52. This Settlement Agreement shall become effective on the date a Stipulated Final Order in 

this matter is signed by the Deputy Secretary ofNMED, acting as Designee for the New Mexico 

Secretary of Environment. 

53. Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph and· paragraph 38, the terms of this 

Settlement Agreement shall terminate when Respondents have fulfilled the requirements of this 

Settlement Agreement. Respondents shall request termination of this Settlement Agreement in 

writing to NMED. The reservations of rights and defenses and the mutual release in paragraphs 

44 to 50 shall not terminate, and shall remain in effect. 

E. INTEGRATION 

54. This Settlement Agreement, Allachment A, addenda and any documents submitted by 

Respondents relating thereto constitute the entire agreement between the Parties. All prior 

conversations, negotiations, meetings, discussions, drafts, and writings of any kind are 

specifically superseded by this Settlement Agreement. There exists between the Parties no oral 

agreement, understanding, statement, promise, representation, warranty, or inducement other 

than as may be expressly set forth in this Settlement Agreement. 
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F. AMENDMENT 

55. This Settlement Agreement shall not be amended or modified except by express written 

agreement by the Parties. 

G. BINDING EFFECT 

56. This Settlement Agreement shaJI be binding on the Parties and their officers, directors, 

employees, agents, constituent agencies, contractors, subsidiaries, successors, assigns, trustees, 

receivers and other affiliates. 

H. FORCE MAJEURE 

57. The Respondents' obligation to comply with any provision of this Settlement Agreement 

shall be deferred under this paragraph to the extent and only for the duration that a failure in 

compliance is caused by force majeure. For the purposes of this Settlement Agreement, force 

majeure is defined as an event or set of circumstances which are beyond the Respondents' 

control and could not have been prevented by the Respondents' reasonable aclion or due 

diligence. Force majeure shall not apply to any failure in compliance due to increased costs or 

Respondents' financial inability to carry out the terms of this Settlement Agreement. The 

Respondents shall submit notification within five (5) days after the date when Respondents first 

know or should have known that a failure in compliance is reasonably foreseeable. Such written 

notice shall include the nature, cause and anticipated length of delay associated with the failure 

of compliance and all steps that Respondents have taken and will take to avoid or minimize the 

failure of compliance, with a schedule of implementation. Failure to provide written notice 

within the required time period shall constitute a waiver of Respondents' right to invoke force 

majeure for the particular event at issue. If NMED agrees that the failure in compliance is 
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attributable to force majeure, it shall extend the time for compliance only to the extent and only 

for the duration necessary to accommodate the force majeure. 

I. EXTENSIONS OF TIME FOR GOOD CAUSE SHOWN 

58. The Respondents may seek an extension of time to perform a requirement of this 

Settlement Agreement, or any attachment or requirement, for good cause, by sending NMED a 

written request for an extension of time and a proposed revised deadline or schedule. The 

Respondents will notify NMED within at least 72 hours if the Respondents determine they may 

not be nble to meet a schedule and/or milestone contained in this Settlement Agreement, 

Artachment A, addenda or any document submitted thereto. The request shall state the length of 

the requested extension and describe the basis for the request. NMED will respond in writing to 

any request for extension within thirty (30) calendar days following receipt of the request. If 

NMED denies the request for extension, it will state the reasons for the denial in its written 

response. 

J. NOTICE TO PARTIES 

59. Whenever W1der the terms of this Settlement Agreement, any Party is required to provide 

notice to any other Party, or to submit any plan, report, or other document called for under this 

Settlement Agreement, such notice, plan, report or other document shall be sent or directed to the 

foJJowing persons via email and standard delivery: 

NMED: 

Department of Energy: 

Bureau Chief 
NMED Hazardous Waste Bureau 
2905 Rodeo Park Drive East # 1, 
Santa Fe, NM 87505 

Kim Davis Lebak 
Manager, Los Alamos Field Office 
3747 West Jemez Rd., MS-A316 
Los Alamos, NM 87544 
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LANS: Dr. Michael T. Brandt 
Associate Director, Environment, Safety & Health 
Los Alamos National Security, LLC 
PO BOX 1663, MS·K491 
Los Alamos, NM 87545 

K. AUTHORITY OF SIGNATORIES 

60. The persons executing this Settlement Agreement represent that they have the requisite 

authority to bind either NMED or the Respondents, as appropriate, and that their representation 

shall be legally sufficient evidence of actual or apparent authority to bind NMED or the 

Respondents to this Settlement Agreement. This Settlement Agreement may be executed in any 

number of counterpart originals, each of which shall be deemed to constitute an original 

agreement, and all of which shall constitute one agreement. The execution of one counterpart by 

any Party shall have the same force and effect as if that Party had signed all other counterparts. 
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NEW MEX1CO ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT 

By: \C.....= 
RynFJY.Gi) 
Secretary, New Mexico Environment Department 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Date: l l 't 'J 'W \(p 

By: ?,...-2 i>. ~ Dai< 
Franlc. G. IOotz 
Under Secretary for Nuclear Security, Department of Energy 
Adminl11trntor, National Nuclear Security Administration 

LOS ALAMOS NATIONAL SECURITY LLC 

Dal<:'* 
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APPROVAL OF STIPULATED FINAL ORDER HWB-14-20 

Pursuant to section 20.1.5.600(8)(2) NMAC, this Settlement Agreement and Stipulated Final 

Order, agreed to by NMED and the Respondents (DOE and LANS), is hereby APPROVED as a 

FINAL ORDER. 

BUTCH TONGATE 
DEPUTY SECRETARY OF ENVIRONMENT 

Date: _....;1....,_}_z_.2.-.:.....j;_;;...6 ____ _ 

19 



Attachment A 

Response Actions 
ACO Ordered VlolaUons Topic Documentation to 

Penn It 
para. Action Addressed Provide as Evidence of 

Cflange 
No. no. (para. no.} (Ordered Action description) 

Complete• 
In- Completl6n1 

Progress/Ongoing•• 

129 1 111-128 No later than 60 days after this AC0-1 Written report· AC0-1 Written report with 
Order becomes final, Description of actions Respondents enclosures noted for ACO 
Respondents shall submit to have taken/ will take to prevent 129 below 
NMED a written report recurrence 
describing any and all actions NOTE: Discussion of the following 
Responden~havetakento ACO Paragraph 129 response 
prevent any recurrence of actions will be tncluded in the 
violations described herein. The Written Report 
written report shall include 
changes to procedures that 
Respondents have 
implemented already 

129 1 111-115 Standing Order for Area G - AOEP Standing Order, 
Restrict Nitrate Salt waste "Restriction on Processing 
processing Nitrate Salt~ TA-54 AREA 

G, EP..AREAG-S0-1242, 
Rev.O 

• 129 1 111-115 Standing Order for All EWMO ADEP Standing Order, 
I Facilities - Pause All legacy TRU "EWMO Legacy TRU 

waste processing at EWMQ. Wa5te Pause~ EP-DIV-SQ. 
supported facilities 20222. R.1 

129 1 111-128 Standing Order for All ADESH issued Standing 
[laboratory Wide] Waste Order. "Waste Treatment 
Generators- Waste Treatment Requirements• 
Requirements -lab-wide 
requirement for environmental 
compliance staff involvement in 
waste processing or treatment 
project planning 

129 1 116-119. Centralizing Environmental ENV Organization Chart 
127. 126 Compliance activities within {Before incident) 

ADESH for LANL ADESH organization Chart 
(After incident) 

Brief summary of how the 
organizational changes 
address the violations ~ited 

-
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Attachment A 

---~·-

Response Actions 
Documentation to ACO Ordered VIolations Topic Penn it 

para. Action Addressed Provide 8s Evidence of 
Change 

No. no. (para. no.) (Ordered Action description) 
Complete* 

In- Completion1 
Progress/Ongoing** 

(i.e .• how the reorganiZation 
intends to fix the problems 
the previous organization 
failed to identify/prevent) 

129 1 
~--

125.126 Introduction of Senior AOEP Organization Chart 
Management Team with technical (Before incident) 
background to understand AOEP organization Chart 
complexity of chemical operations. (After incident) 

Brief summary of how the 
organizational changes 
address lhe violations cited 
o.e .. how the reorganization 
intends to fix the problems 

! the previous organization 
failed to identify/prevent). 
timeline and bios. 

129 1 111-128 Develop Briefing to Senior Briefing Summary 
Management Attendance Metrics 

--
129 1 111-128 Standing Order for incorporation Standing Order for 

of Exhibit F ENV review of Subcootractor ESH 
subcontract scope and Over3ight. AOESH·S0-004, 
requirements for LANL Permit Rev.O 
Compliance 

129 1 111-126 Review of P1 020..2. Laboratory Memo documenting review 
Document Control of LANL P1020·2 and basis 

for no revision in regards to 
ACO requirements. 

129 1 111-118. Training • Education and training • Waste Generation Summary of training 
119, 125- of waste management wolkers Overview. Cour3e compleled and training 
128 (managers. supervisors, 23263 planned 

technicians, generators) to • RCRA Personnel 
recognize when procesSing Training (live), McCoy's 2015 RCRA becomes treatment. Course 7488 Hazardous Waste Seminar 
The following have been revised 
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Attachment A 

-- ~-

Response Actions 
ACO Ordered VIolations Topic Documentation to Penn It para. Action Addressed 

(Ordered Action description) Provide as Evidence of 
Change No. no. (para. no.) Complete• In- CompleUon1 

Progress/Ongoing•• 
and/or developed and delivered to • RCRA Refresher. (3-day), Course Summary 
the appropriate audiences: Course 28582 Waste Management 

I 
• McCoy's training • Waste Generation Coordinator (WMC) and 

• OEPIWMC RCRA Compliance OVerview Annual ENV Deployed staff (DEP) I 
Refresher, Course Environmental Personnel ! training 

I 
I 

21464 RCRA Compliance Training I I: 
RCRA Refresher for Waste - Uve Briefing (March 25, I Managers training 2015) - Summary I 

' I OJT training for TSD 
' inspectors 

RCRA Refresher for Waste 
I Managers, Course 28426 

I 
I 

Waste Generation 

I Overview , Course 23263 

I 
Waste Generation 
Overview Annual 
Refresher, Course 21464 

RCRA Personnel Training 
(Live). Course 7488 

I 
RCRA Refresher, Course 
28582 

I 
NOTE: The RCRA I I I Refresher for Waste I 

Managers Training -
I I Course 28426 to be 

I 

included as a requirement 

I for Subcontract Technical 
Representatives (STRs), as 

I 
noted in the STR 

I QualiriCation Standard 

I I 
~- -·-- J 
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~--

-~ l T~~ ACO Ordered 
para. Action Addressed ~ (Ordered Action description) 
No. no. (para. no.} 

I 
I 

I 

l I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

l l 
I 

I j 
I 

I I I 
I 

l I ' I 

I 
I I I I 

l 
I 
I 
I ! ' I I 
! 

I 
! I I I 

I l 
l 

I 

! I 
I 
I 

I 
I I 

I I 
I 
! 

I ' l 

I 
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Attachment A 

-~ Res: ponse Actions 

Complete* 

-" 

ln­
Progr8$s/Ongolng"* 

Documentation to 
Provide as Evidence of 

Completion1 

NOTE: Both RCRA 
Personnel Training. 

~ (Course 7488) and RCRA 

l Refresher. [Course 28582) 
have been reviewed and 

1

1 
revised to txllster the LANL 
HWF permit detail. Both 

1
~ courses are required 

training for aD Subcontract 
I personnel working on LANL 

I 
property, as noted in 
Subcontract Exhibits 

I 

I, LANL Training Analysis for 
On-the-Job Training for 

I 
TSD Inspectors, Course 
2n45- Summary 

l 
j Training Analysis for RCRA 

l
. Refresher for Waste 

Managers, Course 28426 • 
Summary 

Training Analysis for RCRA 
Personnel Training, Course 
7488- Summary 

I Training Analysis for RCRA 
Refresher, Course 28582-
Summary 

Training Analysis for Waste 
Generation Overview, 
Course 23263- Summary 

Penn it 
Change 



Attachment A 

.----.-----...-------.... ···- < -

Response Actions 
ACO 
para. 
No. 

Ordered 
Action 

no. 

VIolations 
Addressed 
(para. no.) 

Topic 

(Ordered Action detscription) 
Complete• 

I -- I' 11120-124 I ll. Waste Profile Fonn Validation for I 
Mixed and Hazardous Waste 

1 1 . Review of the characterization of -~ 

I I all currently active LANL 
Hazardous waste streams. 

I i 

I I I I t 129 I 1 113-114 i I Evaluation of RCRA Self· 
1 

129 1 113. 114. 
116, 120, 
122, 126, 
127, 128 

January 2016 Page I 5 

· Assessment program needs 
(Compliance Technical Assistance 1 
Program or CTAP) i 

I 
I Operating Record Validation - II 

Validation of the LANL Operating 
Record at all TSDs (TAs 3, 50, 54, 

1 55, 63, 14, 16. 38, 39 permitted and I 
interim status areas walk down). 

--~-

In­
Progress/Ongoing** 

Documentation to 
Provide as Evidence of 

CompJetlon1 

GeneratiOn OveiView 
Refresher; Course 21464-
Summary 

A report which 
identifies the list of 
aclive hazardous waste 
streams reviewed by the 
generator/ WMC teams 
and WM Division, with 

Conclusions/Summary 

CT AP Evaluation and Gap 
Analysis Report with 
Compliance Technical 
Assistance Program 
(CTAP) Procedure (ENV­
CP-QP-115) as enclosure. 

Summaty of Compliance 
Technical Assistance 
Program (CTAP} Procedure 
(ENV-CP-QP-115} 
assessments and electronic 
access to the current 
document revision upon 
NMED request. Provide 
periodic [Semi-annually, or 
upon NMED request] listing 
of document(s} revisions. 

Summary of P409 Toot, 
ADESH· TOOL-803 Facility 

Penn it 
Change 

TSF Operating Record and~ --~ 



ACO Ordered Violations 
para. Action Addressed 
No. no. (palil. no.) 

.. _ 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I I 

I 
' I 

I I 
l 

I 
!113, a4.~ -129 I 1 

I 1120-124 
I 

I 
l I 
I 

I l 

I I 

r-ug11 111-128 

' I 
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Topic 
{Ordered Action descrlptJ 'Of'} 

! 
I 
i 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
l 

l 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Attachment A 

Response Actions 

Complete" 

I WCATS Data Change Control -
lnplementation of W a s t e 
Compliance and Tracking 
System {WCATS) change 
control process. 

In­
Progress/Ongoing** 

Waste processing procedure I Procedure reviews 
review. ongoing 

Implementation of procedure 
reviews by ENV-CP. Summary of 
findings and procedure revisions 
to date. 

OocumentaHon to . 
Provide as Evidence of I Pennlt 

Completion1 Change 

EWMO RCRA Permit 
Operating Record and 
Compliance Programs, EP­
DIV-AP-21, R1.LANL to 
provide electronic access to 
the current document(s) 
revision upon NMED 
request. Provide periodic 
{Semi-annmtUy, or upon 
NMED request} listing of 
document(s) revisions. 

Summary of ENV-RCRA­
TOOL-719 Using WCATS 
to Submit Change 
Requests. and electronic 
access to the cummt 
document(s) revision 
Provide periodic {Semi­
annually. or upon NMED 
request} listing of document 
revisions. 

ENV-CP-AP-200, 
Regulatory Procedure 
Review of Waste 
Management Procedures 
and electronic access to 
the current document 
revision. Provide periodic 
{Semi-annually, or upon 
NMED request] listing of 
document revisions. 

AC0-9 response will 
provide delails on number 
and type of procedures 
identified and review status. 

I 



Attachment A 

~-- ........ ~-~~ 

Response Actions 
ACO Ordered VIolations Topic Documentation to 

Permit para. Action Address~ 
(Orclentd Action description) In--

Provide as Evld.tnce of Change No. no. (para. no.) Complete• 
Progress/Ongoing"" 

C0mpletlon1 

--- I 
129 1 121. 123, 

--
EOCReview EOC Self Disclosure Letter 

124 and 132 The non-compliances addressed in i • LA·UR-15-26713, DIR-15-

' the EOC self.disclosure leiter are I 127 

I I the result of an extensive review of 
all legacy non-nitrate salt wastes EOC Completion Letter-I 
processed under defiCient waste I (ADESH-15-162} 

I I management procedures at LANL. 
EOC Plan (EP-Pt.AN-

I ; 10075, RO} 
EOC Completion Letter· (ADESH- LA-CIN01 Management 15-162) Plan, (WD-PLAN-20280, 
Voluntarily reporting of non-
compliances associated with MTRU 

RO} 

wastes 

' I 

I I EOC Plan {EP·PLAN-10075, RO) • 
A plan for managing Extent of 

I Condition by evaluating past 
' remediation activities performed on I 
I lransuranic (TRU) and mixed TRU 

(MTRU) waste 

I I LA..CIN01 Management Plan, I 
(WD-PLAN-20280, RO) 

I i i Defined steps to conservatively 
I manage the LA-CIN01 waste I 
' containers and iden1ify and apply 

appropriate EPA hazardous waste 
codes. 

! 
f.- ·- t 121-128 ~-1 ! 129 1 Description of actions being taken Exhibit F1 will address Description of plans to 

LL to strengthen Subcontractors' Industrial HeaHh lmp~nt~orExhibi!F I I requirements to follow LANL ES&H hazards and controls re-organization to result in I policies and requirements through two Exhibits (F1 and F2) 

j I the Exhibit F conditions of their 
Exhibit F2 will address I ~,_. ,,, 
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i 

I 
! 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

ACO I Ordered 
para. Action 
No. no. 

I 

130/ 
131 

130/ 213 
131 

I 

' ' 

I 
i 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

1 

I 
I 

I 

Violations 
Addressed 
{pltra. no.) 

j115 
l 
I 

·-

I 
I 

i 
I 
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j 

(Ordered 

Attachment A 

Response Actions 
Topic Documentation to Permit 

Provide as Evidence of 
Action description) • I In· Completion1 Change 

Complete 1 Progress/Ongoing•• 

1 subcontracts. Environmental -- I 

I
, Strengthening of Contract Compliance and Waste 1 , 

Exhibit F Field Verification Management I I 
' Requirements for environmental requirements 1 I risks. 
l I Summary of revisions 

proposed to strengthen 
P850 - Subcontract 
Technical 
Representative 
Procedure training and 

1 subcontractoroversight 

I I 
--------1-:::-s·u-·b'mit a Permit Modifteation PMR Permit Modifteation ~ 

Request (PMR) for treatment of Request 
Nitrate salt wastes 

·· n 60 days after this A. Remediated Nitrate Salt Final Report on · · Chemical Reactivity and Yes 
nes final, I Chemical Reactivity Study Surrogate Waste Tests Recommended 

No later 
Order be 
Respooden 
NMED fo 
commen1 

A. Repo: 
studies R 
conducte 
nitrate sa 
February 

B. Then 
treatmen 
report. 

C. APia 
treatmen 
nitrate salt 
Plansha 
schedule 

Is shaD submit to I (Final Tille TBD) Remediation Strategy for 
wiew and I B. Nitrate Sail Waste Options Los Alamos Remedlated 
he following: . Assessment Report Nitrate Salt (RNS} Wastes, 

. . I C. Remediation/Scheduling Plan as D. L. Clad<, D.J. Funk, LA-
ln the sctentific .1; discussed in technical meetings. UR-15-22393 I' 

pondents have The Plan shall include referenced 
·egarding LANL plans and a schedule for the I N:t t s It Q ti 
¥aste streams since . surrogate waste lest report. '! Ana e a t Rp onsrl LA UR t 
1 2014 1 ssessmen epo - - ! j · · l 15-25355 I 
te salt waste NOTE: The response to item C.iii I I l 
ptions assessment (Final Report on Surrogate Waste Remediation/Scheduling I 

Tests (Final Tille TBD)] !"'ill include Plan, including a the I 
UNS and SWERl analyltcal results. following: 1 

' determine 1. Sampf~~~g and Analysis '! , 

telhods for the NMED requested LA-CIN01.001 Plan forUnremedialed . 'I 
Yaste streams. The liquid sampling lnformat. ion Letter I Nitrate salt Waste, ENV- I' 
tclude a proposed (ENV-D0-15-0313,LA·UR- D0-15-0248, LA-UR-15- I 
r submission ofthe 1 1526468) ~- ___ I ~--L-26_3_5 __ 7 ____ ~ ___ _... ___ .....~_ 



Attachment A 

Response Actions 
ACO Ordered Violations Topic Documentation to 

Permit para. Aetlon Addressed 
(Ordered Action description) Provide as Evidence of Change No. no. {palil. no.) Complete* In- COinpetion1 

Progress/Ongoing .. 
following: 2. T realmenl Study WOik 

i. Sampling and analysis Plan for Nitrele salt 
plan for unremedialed Tra11SU18nic (TRU) Wastes 
nitrate salt waste 3. A schedule for the Final 

iL Surrogate waste testing Report on SuTTOgate Waste 
plan Tests (Final Tdle TBO) 

iii. Report on surrogate waste 
tests {NOTE: Safe HandJing and 

iv. Safe handling and Treatment Plan for 
treatment plan for both Remediated Nitrate Salt 
remedialed and (RNS) and Unremediated 
unremediated nitrate salt Nitrate Salt (UNS) Wastes 
wastes is ac:ldressed under the 

Remediation/Scheduling 
Plan] 

NMEO requested LA· 
CIN01.001 Liquid Sampling 
Information Letter (ENV-
D0-15·0313, LA-UR-
1528468) with the following 
aHachmenls: 

• List of Containers 
sampled; 

• List of Containers not 
sampled, but attempted; 

• Ust of Containers of 
Interest; 

• RTR VIdeos of 
Containers of Interest: 

• Analylical results 

132 4 121-124 Immediately upon this Order Summary report describing the Summary report including 
becoming final, Respondents MTRU waste slream development of Lessons 
shall begin review of every characterization verification review learned {to be described in 
mixed TRU waste stream summary report text). 
which is currentlv managed 

------
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Attachment A 

--~ ---. 

Response Actions 
ACO Ordered VIolations Topic Documentation to 

Pennit para. Action Addressed 
(Onlared Action description) 

Provide as Evidence of 
Change No. no. (pata. no.) Complete• In- Completion1 

Progress/Ongoing** 
or generated at LANL to 
verify that the characterization 
of the waste streams is 
accurate. sufficient. and 
updated. Respondents shall 
complete and document their 
review in the Facility 
Operating Record within 60 
days after this Order becomes 
final. 

133 5 12G-124 No later than 15 days after Description of Procedure used Summary of WSP Annual 
this Order becomes final. for waste streams annual Review Methodology per 
Respondents shaH submit to reevaluation WCA TS User's Manual, 
NMED for review. t h e MAN-5004, R3, Sections 
methodology by which 4.3.1 A and 4.2.1.24 
Respondents conduct their 
annual reevaluation of all 

Summary of procedure, hazardous waste streams. 
Re~ewmgandAppnwmg 
Waste Stream Profiles 
(WPS) in WCATS, WM-
SVS.AP-201 and WCA TS 
User's Manual to describe 
the process to enter new 
and review WSPs, 
(Sections 4.2.1 and 4.2.2). 
Provide electronic access 
to the current document 
revision. Provide periodic 

l 
[Semi-annually, or upon 
NMED request] listing of 
document revisions. 

134 6 120-124 No later than 60 days after Copy of Operating Record Copy of Operating Record 
this Order becomes final, documentation (selected WCATS documentation (select 
Respondents shall submit to prifllouts) for all active RCRA waste WCATS printouts} for all 
NMED any documentation stream profiles active RCRA waste stream 
Respondents have entered in profiles with 
the Facility Operating Record • WSPnumber 
for the most recent. annual -
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Attachment A 

Response Actions 
ACO Ordered Violations Topic Documentation to Permit para. Action Addressed 

(Ordered Action descrijHionJ In-
Provide as Evidence of 

Change No. no. (pant. no.) Complete• Progress/Ongoing•• 
Completion1 

reevaluation of all hazardous • Brief description of the 
waste streams at LANL waste stream 

• Date the WSP was 
activated 

• Dale of the last annual 
review 

The foHowing WCATS 
ftelds were discussed 
among the technical team 
and the fiSI updated lo 
provide data: . WS_ANCill..ARY, . C_MASTER_ TRU.MATRI 

x_cooe .. 
• WS_COMPOSITION, 

• access to 
WS_OOCUMENTATION 
via the WCATS 
Application, 

• access to ws_eomoG 
via the WCATS 
AppliCation, 

• relevant summary of 
WS_EPACOOE. 

• Summary of 
C PARAMETER at WSP 
revel, . WS_WORKPATH -adive 
options, 

• relevant summary of 
C_SHIPOESC.HM_ID-
>DOT_HAZMAT.DOT_ID 
_NO. . relevant summary of 
WS_CHAR_METHOD, 

READ-ONLY access to 
WCA TS provided to NMED 
staff throuqh a lANL 
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Attachment A 

"" -
Response Actions 

ACO Ordered VIolations Topic Documentation to 
Penn It para. Action Addressed 

(Ordered Action description) 
Provide as Evidence of 

Change No. no. (para. no.) Complete• In- Completfon1 
Progress/Ongoing•• 

' """ 

WCATS navigator, upon 
I 

NMEO request. 
I 

f- No later than 60 days after this Description of procedure(s) for 
~- " -

Copy of WM-AP-0005, I 135 7 121-126 
Order becomes final, AK communication system, Waste Characterization and 
Respondents shall develop and internal and external by Processing Review 
submit to NMED procedures to establishing a Waste 
implement an AK Characterization and Processing 
communication system within Review Process 
and between appropriate LANL • To review waste stream 
organizations. including profiles. associated 
subcontractors, to ensure that documentation, waste 
AK documentation is accurate, processing procedures and 
suffic•ent. and updaled. address complex waste 

management issues. 

• To establish communication 
systems and protocol to 
ensure AK documentation is 
accurate, suffteient. and 
updated. 

• To include provisions to 
ensure/ strengthen 
communication of AK 
information between 
subcontractors, LANL 
Subcontract Technical 
Representatives (STRs) and 
appropriate LANL 
organizations. 

136 8 111-128 No tater than 60 days after this Status report on CCPflANL Ongoing active Copy of CCP/LANL 
Order becomes final, interface agreement revisions participation in LANL Interface Agreement 
Respondents shall revise and CCP lA development [revised, approved] 
submit to NMEO the CCP/LANL 
interlace agreement to ensure 
appropriate organizations and 
subject matter experts 
communicate effectively and 
timely regardinq chanqes in 

··-. 
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Attachment A 

Responae"Actions 
Documentation to ACO Ordered VIolations Topic Permit para. Action Addressed 

(Ordered ktion desCription} Provide as Evidence of 
Change No. no. (pant. no.) Complete* In- Completlon1 

Progress/Ongoing** 
waste 

-----~ 

management procedures, 

I waste generation, waste 
treatment, waste repackaging 

I and remediation, waste stream 
delineation, and waste 

l characterization procedures to 
ensure that AK documentation 

l is accurate, suffiCient. and 

l updated. 

I 
- - --·- ~---137 9 111-128 No later than 60 days after this Description of Process( as)· for Summary of [revised] 

Order becomes final, appropriate review of procedures policies and/or 
Respondents shaH revise and that have waste management procedure(s) that have 
submit to NMEO procedures aspects or impacts"" (See list under SME review and approval 
andfor poticies that ensure the Documentation) of proposed waste 
proper LANL organizations and • Reference to Waste management aspects or 

' subject matter experts review Characterization and impacts, including: 
and then approve or reject Processing Review process • Summary of revised proposed waste management used to resolve difficult waste P409 Waste procedural changes. tecMical issues Management 

• AOEP Technical I Procedure 
Development. EP-AP-

I 10007, RO; 

I 
• ENV-CP-AP-200 

Regulatory Procedure 
Review of Waste 

I 
I I Management 

I Procedures; and 

I • ADEP Document 
Control, EP-AP-

l 10001, RO 

I • Waste 
Characterization and 

I ' Process in Review, I -
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ACO Ordered 
para. AcUon 
No. no. 

VlolaUons 
Addressed 
(para. no.) 

January 2016 Page 114 

Attachment A 

y-
-- Response Actions ,--------------------------T ~ 

Toplc j -- j Progr ln-ro-M_6on~; Complete• T~goln!(' 

l I 

Documentation to I Penn it 
Provide as Evidence or Change 

Completlon1 

WM-AP-0005, and , 
• Summary of Revised 'I 

P409 - associated 

I 

_1_ 

Toots 1· 

• AOESH-IG­
TOOL-101-
Waste 
Management 
Glossary 

• ADESH-AP­
TOOL-111-
Waste 
Characterization 

• ADESH-AP­
TOOL-115 
Waste 
Compatibility 

• ADESH-AP­
TOOL-206-
Hazardous 
Waste (General) 

• AOESH-AP­
TOOL-300-
Radioactive 
Waste 
Management 

• ADESH-AP-
TOOL-314- ~· 

1 Radioactive 
1 Waste 

l 
Characterization;LI 
ADESH-AP-
TOOL-803-
Facility Operating 

____ _ .Record __ 



Attachment A 

--~~0~ 

Response Actions I --
ACO Ordered VIolations Topic Documentation to 

Penn It para. Action Addressed Provide as Evidence of (Ordered AcUon description) In- Change No. no. (para. no.) Compfete• CompleUon1 
Progress/Ongoing** 

u~•--~-h--

I • AOESH-AP-
I TOOL-810- I 

I 
I 

I Waste ' 
Processing at 
Permitted Units 

• AOESH-AP-

' 
TOOL-901-
Elementary I 

' 

I Neutralization 
• ADESH-AP-

I TOOL-902-I 

Absorption 
without a Permit 

• AOESH-AP-
TOOL-906-
Treatment by 
the Waste 
Generator 

Electronic access to the 
current document(s) 
revision will be provided 
upon NMED request 

LANL will provide 
periodic {Semi-annually, 
or upon NMED request) 

I listing of document 
revisions . I . . 

Description of Revisions to P300, --137 9 Memorandum documenting 
Integrated Wodr Management review and evaluation. 

Evaluation results indicate 
no revision required to 
address violations. ·-- . 

137 9 1 Revise TA-55 Procedures lo Technical Procedure Use - ---· ~--- ·-
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Attachment A 

---~---

ACO Ordered VIolations Topic 
Response Actions r- -

l Documentation to Penn it l 

para. Action Addressed (Ordered Action descriptio 
No. no. (para. no.) n) l Complete* I 1 

Provide as Evidence of ----1 Change n- . Completlon1 
i 

I 
i -- -f 137 , 9 1 
I l I 

! I 
i I 
~37- pf- -- --
l i 
I I ___ . 

I incorporate ENV-CP reviews I 
! Define process for TA-54 ---r--
1 Procedures to Incorporate ENV-CP 
I reviews 

Revise WETF Procedures to 
incorporate ENV-CP reviews 

* All act100s in Completed Act100s column will be completed no later than 60 days after this Order becomes final. 

·"Actions that wHJ be initiated, but not completed, in 60 days are contained in the In-Progress/Ongoing Actions column. 

/Ongoing•• I ___ ,. _ _..,._ 

and Development Process. 
PA-AP..()1016 

--
ADEP Technical Procedure 
Development, ER-AP-

I 

10007, RO I 
Document Development, 
WETF-AP-10, Rev. H 

1 Some items being submitted as "Evidence of Completion" will not be napproved" by NMEO (e.g., those subject to NMED review and comment); 

however, pursuant to paragraph 49 of the Settlement Agreement, if NMED disapproves any timely submission required by the Ordered Actions 

(e.g., response action}, NMEO shall identify the specific reason(s) for the disapproval, and the Respondent shall have the opportunity to correct 

any deficiencies and supplement the submission. 
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